
          

 

 

SONOMA BAY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
AUGUST 8, 2022 

10:30 A.M. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sonomabaycdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Sonoma Bay Clubhouse 

3600 Sonoma Drive 
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
August 8, 2022 

10:30 a.m. 
 
 
  

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………………...Page 3 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………Page 6 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget………….Page 7 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule……Page 14 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………….Page 16 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn  



Page 1



Page 2



Page 1 of 3 
 

SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 13, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Sonoma Bay Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 10:32 a.m. at the Sonoma Bay Clubhouse located at 3600 
Sonoma Drive, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which stated that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on October 1, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of Vice Chairperson Consuella Bailey and Supervisors 
Pamela Whitehall, Sherman Cogle and Rokibul Hasan (who arrived at 10:40 a.m.) constituted a 
quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff present included: District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and 
District Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  March 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the March 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting were presented for Board 
consideration. 
 
Mr. George pointed out the oath of office being administered for Pamela Carter was missing. Ms. 
Bethel asked the Board to take a look to see if there were any other errors; if not, she will bring 
the revised minutes back to the next meeting.  
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  FPL Update 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that she had received an email from Allison of the HOA, stating the board does 
not want to paint the light poles black and could the HOA board make that decision.  She also 

Page 3



Page 2 of 3 
 

stated that the vendor advised that the project was not completed as of yet because the HOA was 
not responding to communication from the vendor.  Ms. Bethel asked the Board if they changed 
their minds or would they like to proceed with the project?  A lengthy discussion ensued.  Ms. 
Bailey updated Ms. Carter on the FPL light project and how the Board came to the decision to 
paint the poles black.  The Board inquired if they could reverse the motion.  Mr. George advised 
that they could and they would be responsible for any expenses incurred by the contractor for the 
project, if any. 
 
Ms. Bailey would like the record to reflect that she has no opinion about the decision because she 
does not have all of the facts to make an educated decision.  For example, if there will be fees from 
the contractor to cancel and would like this information to reflect in the minutes, once determined.  
 
Mr. Cogle would like the record to reflect that the HOA members on this Board handle these 
situations separately.  HOA matters are HOA and CDD matters are CDD.  
 
Ms. Bethel asked the Board if they would like to take a vote to rescind the motion and the Board 
stated they would. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Cogle, seconded by Ms. Carter rescinding the motion approving the 
Elite Painting proposal in the amount of $4,855 for the painting of the light poles.  Upon being put 
to a vote, the motion carried 3 to 1 with Ms. Bailey dissenting. 
 
Ms. Bethel followed-up with the contractor after the meeting to advise that the Board did not wish 
to proceed with the contract and contractor stated no extra expenses had been incurred.  
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Security 
 
Mr. Cogle would like how District funds can be used for the record.  The HOA is inquiring about 
the CDD paying for security again.  Mr. George explained that public funds could not be used for 
a private entity such as an HOA.  However, the District could pay for additional security, but they 
cannot enforce HOA rules.  Ms. Bethel stated this was the same problem we ran into with security 
and why the HOA took it over.  The Board would like more security during the summer months. 
Ms. Bethel indicated the Board could address this next, during a discussion regarding the Riviera 
Beach Police. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Riviera Beach Police 
 
Mr. Cogle believes the police would be more beneficial during the summer months rather than an 
extra rover.  Ms. Bailey would like the police to patrol and walk the community.  A lengthy 
discussion ensued.  Mr. Cogle indicated during the last meeting with the police that they noted that 
the CDD board could come up with post orders for them that state the specifics of how the 
community wanted them to patrol.  Ms. Bethel agreed with Mr. Cogle.  Mr. Gorge suggested the 
Board do so now, since the next meeting may be in August.  The Board stated they would like the 
police to check for break-ins, loitering and to patrol the area on foot and by automobile. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Cogle, seconded by Mr. Hansan and unanimously passed approving 
the hiring of the Riviera Beach Police to patrol the community during the summer months (June, 
July and August). 
  

Page 4



Page 3 of 3 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 
There were no New Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Bethel directed the Board’s attention to the financial report in the meeting package and asked 
if there were any questions.  Ms. Bailey inquired about Marksman’s last payment.  Mr. George 
informed her that their last month was October and the Board had approved the last invoice to be 
paid that was presented from Marksman by the HOA.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 11:07 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Cogle, seconded by Mr. Hasan and passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary                                                         Chairperson 
 

Page 5



�������������	�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" ���

#$%&'(()*'+,%�-+.$&'%/01234567�38�956�/:2;�<6:=5�/>4?�>8�@02A�BCD�EFEEGHIJKLHM/:2;�<6:=5�N>08?ADOHKLIP�QPRKS>?3=6�>T�/0123=�U6:V38W�:87X6W02:V�<>:V7�Y66?38W�>T�?56�Z>8>;:�<:A�N>;;083?A[6\62>];68?�[34?V3=?956�<>:V7�>T�Z0]6V\34>V4�>T�?56�Z>8>;:�<:A�N>;;083?A�[6\62>];68?�[34?V3=?�̂?56�[34?V3=?�_�̀322�5>27�:�/0123=�U6:V38W�:87X6W02:V�<>:V7�Y66?38W�>8�a0W04?�bD�EFEED�:?�BFcdF�:e;eD�>V�:4�4>>8�?56V6:T?6V�:4�=:8�16�56:V7D�:?�?56�Z>8>;:�<:AN2015>046�2>=:?67�:?�dfFF�Z>8>;:�[V3\6D�X3\36V:�<6:=5D�g2>V37:�ddhFhe956�]0V]>46�>T�?56�/0123=�U6:V38W�34�?>�V6=63\6�]0123=�=>;;68?�>8�?56�g34=:2�i6:V�EFEEjEFEd�/V>]>467�g38:2�<07W6?�>T�?56Z>8>;:�<:A�N>;;083?A�[6\62>];68?�[34?V3=?e�956�]0V]>46�>T�?56�X6W02:V�<>:V7�Y66?38W�34�T>V�?56�<>:V7�?>�=>84376V�:8A10438644�̀53=5�;:A�]V>]6V2A�=>;6�16T>V6�3?e�a�=>]A�>T�?56�<07W6?�:87j>V�?56�aW687:�;:A�16�>1?:3867�TV>;�?56�[34?V3=?�46̀143?6�>V�:?�?56�>TT3=64�>T�?56�[34?V3=?�Y:8:W6VD�EkFBa�<0V84�X>:7D�/:2;�<6:=5�l:V7684D�g2>V37:�ddhBFD�70V38W�8>V;:210438644�5>0V4e�956�;66?38W4�:V6�>]68�?>�?56�]0123=�:87�̀322�16�=>870=?67�38�:==>V7:8=6�̀3?5�?56�]V>\343>84�>T�g2>V37:�2:̀T>V�=>;;083?A�76\62>];68?�734?V3=?4e�Y66?38W4�;:A�16�=>8?38067�:4�T>087�86=644:VA�?>�:�?3;6�:87�]2:=6�4]6=3T367�>8�?56V6=>V7e956V6�;:A�16�>==:43>84�̀568�>86�>V�;>V6�Z0]6V\34>V4�̀322�]:V?3=3]:?6�1A�?626]5>86m�?56V6T>V6D�:�4]6:n6V�?626]5>86�̀322�16]V6468?�:?�?56�;66?38W�2>=:?3>8�4>�?5:?�Z0]6V\34>V4�;:A�16�T022A�38T>V;67�>T�?56�734=0443>84�?:n38W�]2:=6eo8�:==>V7:8=6�̀3?5�?56�]V>\343>84�>T�?56�a;6V3=:84�̀3?5�[34:1323?364�a=?D�:8A�]6V4>8�V6p03V38W�4]6=3:2�:==>;;>7:?3>84�>V�:838?6V]V6?6V�?>�]:V?3=3]:?6�:?�?5646�;66?38W4�45>027�=>8?:=?�?56�[34?V3=?�Y:8:W6V�:?�̂kfB_�fdFqhCEE�:87j>V�?>22qTV66�:?�BqbrrqrdrhCEED�:?�26:4?�46\68�̂r_�7:A4�]V3>V�?>�?56�7:?6�>T�?56�;66?38W4eoT�:8A�]6V4>8�76=3764�?>�:]]6:2�:8A�76=343>8�;:76�̀3?5�V64]6=?�?>�:8A�;:??6V�=>84376V67�:?�?534�/0123=�U6:V38W�:87�X6W02:V<>:V7�Y66?38WD�40=5�]6V4>8�̀322�8667�:�V6=>V7�>T�?56�]V>=66738W4�:87�40=5�]6V4>8�;:A�8667�?>�6840V6�?5:?�:�\6V1:?3;V6=>V7�>T�?56�]V>=66738W4�34�;:76�:?�?563V�>̀ 8�6s]6846�:87�̀53=5�V6=>V7�38=20764�?56�?64?3;>8A�:87�6\3768=6�>8�̀53=5�?56:]]6:2�34�1:467eY66?38W4�;:A�16�=:8=62267�TV>;�?3;6�?>�?3;6�̀3?5>0?�:7\6V?3467�8>?3=6eZ>8>;:�<:A�N>;;083?A[6\62>];68?�[34?V3=?`̀ è4>8>;:1:A=77e>VW@02A�BCD�EfD�EFEE�trkdFFBd
Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 
BUDGET.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Sonoma Bay Community Development District (“District”) has 
prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 and 
has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget 
and Final Special Assessment Roll; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non ad-valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments 
set forth therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of August, 2022. 
 

 
ATTEST: SONOMA BAY 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 7



   Sonoma Bay
Community Development District

   Final Budget For
     Fiscal Year 2022/2023

    October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Sonoma Bay Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2022/2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, PALM BEACH 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of August, 2022. 

 

 
ATTEST: SONOMA BAY 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 14



SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Sonoma Bay Community 
Development District will hold Regular Meetings in the Sonoma Bay Clubhouse located at 3600 
Sonoma Drive, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404, at 10:30 a.m. on the following dates:  
 

October 10, 2022 
November 14, 2022 
December 12, 2022 

January 9, 2023 
February 13, 2023 

March 13, 2023 
April 10, 2023 
May 8, 2023 

June 12, 2023 
July 10, 2023 

August 14, 2023 
September 11, 2023 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any and all business coming before the Board.  Meetings 
are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  
Copies of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by 
contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 five (5) days 
prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the 
discussions taking place.  Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time and place 
specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll-free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior 
to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
SONOMA BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.sonomabaycdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  THE PALM BEACH POST    00/00/2022 

Page 15



  Sonoma Bay
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
July 2022

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21


	Sonoma Bay Community Development District - August 8, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget

	Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule
	Financial Report




